I. PETITIONER 

Petitioner, Harley C. Douglass, Inc., Appellant and Defendant 

below, Petitions for review of the Decision terminating review. 

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION TO BE REVIEWED 

Douglass seeks review of the Published Opinion ("Decision") 

issued on March 5, 2015. A copy of the Decision is attached as Appendix 

Al1l. Douglass timely moved for reconsideration which was denied on 

March 31, 2015. A copy of the order denying reconsideration is attached 

as Appendix B.

III. STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

There are two issues presented for review. The first pertains to 

prejudgment interest and is an issue never before fully addressed by any 

reviewing Court in this state;l21 

Are debtors required to include within their written 
contracts, two rather than one, agreed upon rates 
of interest in order to avoid imputation ofthe 12 
percent default rate imposed by RCW 19.52.010(1 )in 
the event of breach? 

Sole authority for imposition of the twelve percent default rate is 

found within RCW 19.52.010(1), a true and correct copy of which is 

attached as Appendix "C". This Court is asked to clarify the meaning, 

[IJ All citations to the Decision are to 030515 W ACA, 31992-0-III, (App "A"). 

[21 The cases cited as being in conflict with the Third Division's Decision 
strongly infer that agreement on only one, and not two, interest rates is necessary 
but even those cases do not defmitively answer the specific question presented. 

1 



application and relationship of the terms, "every loan or forbearance" 

and "where no different rate is agreed to". The relevant portion of the 

statute reads as follows; 

Every loan or forbearance of money, goods, 
or thing in action shall bear interest at the rate 
of twelve percent per annum where no different 
rate is agreed to in writing between the parties: 1311 

The second issue involves attorneys' fees on appeal. 

Can attorney fees on appeal be awarded absent 
compliance with RAP 18.l(b)? 

The Decision is in direct conflict with numerous prior decisions of 

this Reviewing Court and all three divisions of Court of Appeals because 

the Decision awarded fees on appeal despite Landco's complete failure to 

comply with the mandatory provisions of RAP 18.1 (b). 

Landco's only claim for fees in its brief was the bald statement; 

"The prevailing party is entitled to attorney fees on this appeal". 

An award of fees, based upon such statement without argument as 

required by RAP 18.1 (b) conflicts with every reported case deciding that 

Issue. 

[31 The statute contains the following additional language not relevant to this 
Petition; PROVIDED, That with regard to any transaction heretofore or hereafter 
entered into subject to this section, if an agreement in writing between the parties 
evidencing such transaction provides for the payment of money at the end of an 
agreed period of time or in installments over an agreed period of time, then such 
agreement shall constitute a writing for purposes of this section and satisfy the 
requirements thereof. The discounting of commercial paper, where the borrower 
makes himself or herself liable as maker, guarantor, or endorser, shall be 
considered as a loan for the purposes of this chapter. 
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IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Douglass is a residential land developer and home builder. (RT 

560; 6-23). Respondent, TJ Landco, LLC, the plaintiffbelow, is owned 

and operated by Tod Lasley, himself a seasoned residential real estate 

developer. (RT 66; 17 & 118; 22- 120; 6) 

In late 2002 or early 2003 Landco began assembling 94 acres of 

land in Spokane for residential development. (RT 66; 17 & 118-22; 

120; 6). In February of 2004 Landco and Douglass entered into a 

written contract with Douglass agreeing to buy the land once Landco 

obtained an acceptable preliminary plat. The purchase price was $3.6 

million and required a $2 million down payment. $1.6 million was 

deferred, to be paid in annual installments beginning two years 

following close of escrow. (Ex P-1)l41(CP 49). 

Prior to plat approval and before Douglass was obligated to pay 

any money, Landco encountered financial difficulty and needed nearly 

$1.5 million in advances from Douglass to enable it to honor contract 

obligations on its own purchase of the 94 acres. In exchange for 

Douglass' financial backing, Landco reduced the price to $3.1 million. 

(RT 148; 22; 155- 4). 

Interest during the first two years following close of escrow was 

to equal the minimum federal rate. Since no interest was awarded for 

[41 Ex P-19 is the Parties' December 22, 2006 contract modification, attached as 
Appendix "D". 
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the first two years following the December 22, 2006 close of escrow, 

the federal rate is not at issue. After the first two years, interest was to 

accrue at six percent until the balance was paid in full. (Ex P-1) (CP 

49). 

In June of 2004, Landco unsuccessfully attempted to amend the 

contract to require Douglass to pay twelve percent "default" interest on 

late payments. (R T 150- 9; 151; 16)[51. 

By the time Landco obtained final preliminary plat approval 

Douglass had advanced cash or credit of around $2,485,442 ofthe $3.6 

million original price. (Ex P-19)[61 • On December 22, 2006 the parties 

met and agreed that there remained owing a total of $1,114,558.19. 

(RT 572; 17- 19) [?J 

Under the original agreement Landco was not entitled to another 

payment for two years. (Ex P-1 ). However, when the parties met in 

December of 2006 Landco was again in need of cash. (RT 155; 10-

156; 4. At the December meeting, Landco promised to reduce the 

interest rate from six percent to zero if Douglass would make an 

immediate payment of $114,558 and advance the due date on the initial 

[SJ Ex D-101 at page 2, (iii) & Ex D-102 at page 2, (iii). 

l61 Ex P-19 is the parties' December 22, 2006 contract modification, attached as 
Appendix "D". 

[?J also see CP 68 & 583 and Ex P-19. 
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installment a full year. (RT 331; 21- 332; 5). Douglass agreed, the 

parties executed a one page modification and Douglass advanced 

Landco another $114,558. (RT 574; 3-5). The initial $200,000 

installment was paid on March 4, 2008. (CP 583) 

When the December 22, 2008 installment came due Douglass 

had discovered what he considered to be significant problems with the 

plat which he believed would only allow for 304 of the 371 lots. (RT 

851; 2-4) (578; 17- 579; 3). Believing entitlement to an offset 

exceeding the remaining $800,000 balance, Douglass made no further 

payments. (CP 588, 589; findings 20- 24). Douglass then sold the land 

without developing it. (RT 864;10- 14). 

The Trial Court found that Douglass was not entitled to an 

offset and was found to be in breach of contract. Landco was awarded 

the $800,000 as damages. (RT 865; 13). That part of the Judgment 

was not appealed. In addition to the $800,000 in damages, and 

notwithstanding the contract modification that called for "zero 

interest", Landco was awarded $289,705 in prejudgment interest. (CP 

592). 

Concerning prejudgment interest, the issue presented for review 

is whether the Court's interpretation of RCW 19.52.010(1) conflicts 

with the plain language of the statute, the Washington State 
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Constitution and prior decisions. This Court is asked to decide if the 

parties to a contract need to agree upon one rate of interest or two? 

Concerning fees on appeal, the issue presented for review is 

whether the bare bones statement, "The prevailing party is entitled to 

attorney fees on this appeal" satisfies RAP 18.1(b) and whether the 

Decision conflicts with the cases cited below. 

V. ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF GRANTING REVIEW 

1. Prejudgment Interest 

Prior to this case, interpretation of RCW 19.52.010(1) had come 

before reviewing courts in three primary published decisions. From 

Division I came McDowell v. The Austin Company, 39 Wn.App. 443, 693 

P.2d 744 (1985), from Division II came Wright v. Dave Johnson 

Insurance Inc., 167 Wn.App. 758, 275 P.3d 339 (2012), and from this 

Court came Schrom v. Board for Volunteer Fire Fighters, 153 Wn.2d 19, 

100 P.3d 814 (2004), (originally emanating from Division III). l91 

Except for the Decision on which Review is sought, there is not 

one published decision interpreting RCW 19.52.010(1) as requiring two---

rather than one---agreed upon rate of interest in order to avoid imputation 

of the twelve percent default rate. To do so judicially does violence to the 

[91 The following cases also touch on pre-judgment interest; Chan v. Smider, 31 
Wn.App. 730, 644 P.2d 727 (Div 1), State v. Trask, 98 Wn.App. 690, 990 P.2d 
967 (Div 2, 2000), Hidalgo v. Barker, 176 Wn.App. 527, 309 P.3d 687 (Div III), 
Mehlenbacher v DeMont, 103 Wn.App. 240, 11 P.3d 871 (Div II). 
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statute and conflicts with Section I of Article II of the Washington State 

Constitution which reserves legislation to the legislature.[IOJ 

Further, because untold numbers of commercial relationships 

involve application of pre-judgment interest the certainty which this Court 

can bring to the issue is of substantial public importance. 

A. The Decision Is In Conflict With RCW 19.52.010(1), 
The Statute Under Which It Was Decided. 

The original contract called for the deferred balance to bear interest 

at six percent until paid in full. The contract was modified by a writing 

that changed the interest rate from six percent to zero. The issue before 

the Court of Appeals was whether the rate stated in the contract---as 

modified---satisfied the statute's requirement mandating an agreed interest 

rate to avoid imposition of the legal rate of twelve percent. 

RCW 19.52.010(1) provides in relevant part; 

Every loan or forbearance of money, goods, or 
thing in action shall bear interest at the rate 
of twelve percent per annum where no different 
rate is agreed to in writing between the parties ... 

The Court of Appeals determined that Parties had agreed upon an 

interest rate on the "loan" but had not agreed upon an additional rate--- a 

separate rate---for a "forbearance" should the loan not be paid as 

agreed. (Decision@ 7, 8). In effect, the Court of Appeal determined that 

the statute requires that the parties agree upon two rates of interest in order 

[IOJ Section I of Article II Attached as Appendix "E". 
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to avoid imposition of the legal rate in the event of a default on the "loan" 

(or "forbearance"). However, that is not what the statute says. 

Douglass argues that Division III's interpretation does not make 

sense because under that interpretation it would always be necessary for 

the parties to state two interest rates to avoid the legal rate upon breach. In 

theory, both rates might even be the same but the parties would have to 

designate rates on both the deferred balance on the loan as well as a rate 

on the new forbearance which would be created upon a loan default. 

It is important to remember that where the parties have entered into 

a contract the issue never arises save for a default. If two parties to a 

contract were to agree to a deferred balance at eight percent per annum 

until paid and the obligor never defaulted, the balance, plus eight percent, 

would be paid and there would never be a need to invoke the statute. It is 

only where the parties have not agreed upon any rate that the statue is 

invoked to determine the rate at which pre-judgment interest is to be 

calculated. 

But the Court of Appeals determined that despite the fact that the 

deferred balance was a "forbearance", the breach caused a "new 

forbearance" and that the parties had not agreed upon a separate rate for 

that forbearance. (Decision @ 7, 8). Clearly, the statute only calls for 

agreement on one rate and in this case a rate was clearly agreed upon and 

supported by valuable consideration, i.e., Douglass' advance payments to 
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Landco. In mandating two rates the Court of Appeals Decision is in direct 

conflict with the statute. 

The Decision recognized that prejudgment interest was mandatory 

and "the only question was whether the statutory interest rate, or some 

contract rate, applied". (Decision @ 7). In support of the Decision the 

Court noted that the breach created a "new forbearance", citing Kahl v. 

Ablan, 160 Wash. 201, 206, 294 P. 1010 (1931) and holding; 

the modification did not include an agreement by 
Landco that it would accept zero percent interest 
on each outstanding $200,000 installment if it went 
unpaid when due. Instead, each missing installment 
created a new forbearance of $200,000. The contract 
did not address a new forbearance resulting from 
breach of the contract. Accordingly, RCW 
19.52.010(1) governs and mandates interest at 12 
percent on each forbearance. (Decision@ 8). 

It should be noted that in its 84 years, Kahl has been cited on just 

three occasions---the last time being in 1953. Kahl has never been cited 

for the proposition that where the parties have agreed to an interest rate an 

additional rate must also have been agreed upon for the "new 

forbearance". 

B. The Decision Is In Conflict With Supreme Court Case Schrom v. 
Board for Volunteer Fire Fighters And With Two Decisions of 
The Court of Appeals 

1. Schrom v. Board {Or Volunteer Fire Fighters 
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In Schrom v. Board for Volunteer Fire Fighters, 153 Wn.2d 19, 

100 P.3d 814, (2004), this Court provided guidance in interpreting what 

was meant by "no different rate having been agreed upon". 

There, two volunteer fire fighters who had paid into a pension fund 

were determined to be ineligible to receive pension benefits and it was 

determined that the fees they had previously paid should be reimbursed 

with twelve percent interest. Since at the time the payments were paid 

into the fund there was no reason to believe that they would ever have to 

be returned, there was no agreement on a rate of interest if those payments 

ever had to be returned. 

The Court held that since there was no written provision for 

interest the volunteers were entitled to 12% interest on their 

contributions and to hold otherwise would "undercut RCW 19.52.010 

which mandates 12 percent interest when no other rate was agreed 

upon. .. " (Id at 36). (emphasis added). This Court made no reference to 

there having to be two stated rates---only one. 

Since the Decision conflicts with a case decided by this 

Reviewing Court, RAP 13.4(b)(1) provides for review at this time. 

2. Wright v. Dave Johnson Insurance Inc. 

In April of 2012 Division II followed with a similar holding in 

Wright v. Dave Johnson Insurance Inc., 167 Wn. App. 758, 275 P.3d 

339, (Div 2, 2012). There, Johnson, Wright's son-in-law, paid some of 
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the premiums on Johnson's life insurance policy. As in Schrom, there 

was no expectation by the parties that those premiums would have to be 

repaid by Johnson so there was no agreement as to the rate of interest 

which would accrue on the premiums. Circumstances later required 

reimbursement with the Court finding; 

There is no evidence of any agreed interest rate. Thus, under 
Schrom, the correct prejudgment interest rate to be applied 
to the reimbursement payments was 12o/o per annum under 
RCW §19.52.010(1). (at 776, 777) 

3. McDowell v. The Austin Company 

McDowell v. The Austin Company, 39 Wn.App. 443, 693 P.2d 

7 44 (Div 1, 1985) provides the most clear interpretation of the statute 

of any published case. There, the parties entered into a written 

agreement to resolve litigation over an indemnity claim. It provided 

that with regard to an eventual decision regarding ultimate 

responsibility, the prevailing party would be entitled to interest "at the 

rate established by RCW § 19.52.010". (at 446). Upon determination 

of final liability, the trial court awarded the prevailing party 

prejudgment interest at the six percent rate applicable under § 

19.52.010 at the time the agreement was entered into. [IOJ However, the 

statutory rate had doubled between the time of the agreement and the 

date of the calculation. (at 451). 

[!OJ Now 12 percent. 
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On appeal the Court determined that since the parties had 

agreed that § 19.52.010 should control, prejudgment interest should 

accrue at six percent from the time of the agreement until July 26, 

1981, the date on which interest under the statute was changed from six 

percent to 12 percent, and thereafter should be calculated at the higher 

rate, holding; 

If the parties had agreed to a prejudgment interest rate 6 
percent, that rate would control here. However, instead of 
setting a fu:ed rate, they elected in the Agreement to have the 
amount prescribed by RCW 19.52.010 be controlling. 

(at 452) 

McDowell provides clear authority in support of Douglass' urged 

statutory interpretation. The parties agreed upon a rate. It just so 

happened that the rate they agreed upon was the rate provided by the 

statute. However, as the court stated, had they agreed upon a different 

rate, that is the rate that would be used to calculate prejudgment 

interest, and the statutory increase of six percent to twelve percent 

between the date of the agreement and the effective date on which the 

interest rate had to be determined would have been ignored. 

There is no published case that stands for the proposition that 

parties to a contract must provide for two rates of interest, one on the 

deferred balance and one in the event of a breach, in order to avoid 

imputation of the legal rate upon breach. However, the Decision 

Douglass asks this Court to review does just that. Since the Decision 
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conflicts with previous cases decided by the Court of Appeals, RAP 

13 .4(b )(2) provides for review at this time. 

C. The Decision Is In Conflict With The Washington State 
Constitution 

Section I of Article II of the Washington State Constitution 

grants and reserves legislative authority to the legislature---not to the 

courts. By reading language into RCW 19.52.010(1) which the 

legislature did not elect to include and which substantially changes the 

meaning of the statute, the Decision is in direct conflict with the state 

constitution and on that basis alone should be reviewed pursuant to 

RAP 13.4(b)(3). 

D. The Decision Involves An Issue of Substantial Public Interest 

There are an incalculable number of commercial transactions 

occumng daily within this state which involve written agreements 

providing for interest on deferred balances. By definition, there is a 

substantial public interest in knowing whether one must agree to two 

interest rates or one in order to avoid imposition of the statutory rate of 

twelve percent upon default. Accordingly, the Decision should be 

reviewed pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(4). 

2. Attorney Fees on Appeal 

The trial court awarded attorney fees to Landco. The Court of 

Appeals found that regarding interest, Landco prevailed on appeal and was 
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entitled to fees pursuant to RCW 4.84.330; Hill v. Cox, 110 Wn.App. 394, 

411-12,41 P.3d 495 (2002) and RAP 18.1. (Decision@ 15,16). 

Landco sought fees on appeal of $50,705.50 by motion. The 

motion was opposed by Douglass and has yet to be ruled upon. In any 

event, the ruling of the Court of Appeals conflicts with prior decisions of 

this Reviewing Court and of all three Divisions of the Court of Appeals 

because Landco completely failed to comply with the mandatory 

requirement of RAP 18.1 (b) which imposes a strict requirement 

compelling one seeking attorneys' fees on appeal to do two things; (1) 

devote a separate section in the opening brief to such request, and (2) 

provide argument within that section. Case law interpreting the rule 

makes clear that the argument is mandatory and must include citation to 

legal and factual authority for an award of attorney fees. 

While Landco provided the required separate section it failed to 

provide the required argument and failed to cite to any part of the record 

or to any legal authority---even to RAP 18.1--- which would allow an 

award of fees. Accordingly, because Landco failed to satisfy the 

mandatory argument requirement ofRAP 18.1(b), the part of the Decision 

awarding fees to Landco on appeal conflicts with prior decisions of this 

Court and decisions of all three Divisions of the Court of Appeals and 

warrants review under RAP 13.4(b)(l) & (2). 

Ill 
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A. RAP 18.1 

Award of attorney fees on appeal is governed by RAP 18.l.[IIJ The 

relevant portion of subsection (b) is reprinted below; 

Argument in Brief. The party must devote a section 
of its opening brief to the request for the fees or 
expenses. 

While Landco included a separate section on attorney fees in its 

opening brief, it failed to provide the required legal authority, citation to 

the record, or argument. Landco' s entire separate section advised this 

Court that it requested fees on appeal and with the following single 

sentence argument; 

The prevailing party is entitled to attornev fees on this appeal. 

(Landco's Opening Brief, page 47). 

B. The Decision is in Conflict With The Decisions of the Supreme 
Court and All Three Divisions of the Court of Appeals 

Case after case, from this Reviewing Court, as well as Divisions I, 

II and III, firmly instructs that RAP 18.1 (b) is not satisfied by such a bare 

conclusionary statement. 

From the Washington State Supreme Court, Douglass cites Wilson 

v. Toni Maroni's, 134 Wn.2d 692, 952 P.2d 590 (1998) and Wachovia SBA 

Lending v. Kraft, 165 Wn.2d 481, 200 P.3d 683 (Wash. 2009). 

In Wilson, the high Court noted; "The rule requires more than a 

bald request for attorney fees on appeal". (citing Thweatt v. Hommel, 67 

[Ill A copy of RAP 18.1 attached as Exhibit "F". 
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Wash.App. 135, 148, 834 P.2d 1058, review denied) "Argument and 

citation to authority are required under the rule". (citing Austin v. U.S. 

BankofWash., 73 Wash.App. 293,313,869 P.2d 404, review denied). (Id 

at n. 4). [Ill 

In the more recent case from this Reviewing Court, Wachovia v. 

Kraft, it was again noted that RAP 18.1(b) requires more than a bald 

request for attorney fees on appeal. Argument and citation to authority are 

required under the rule to advise us of the appropriate grounds for an 

award of attorney fees as costs. (Id at 493). 

From Division III Douglass cites three cases; Richards v. City of 

Pullman, 134 Wn.App. 876, 142 P.3d 1121 (2006); Pruitt v. Douglass 

County, 116 Wn.App. 547, 66 P.3d 1111 (2003) and Lakes v. 

Vondermehden, 117 Wn.App. 212, 70 P.3d 154 (2003). 

In Richards, the Court held that there must be more than a bald 

request for fees; argument and citation to authority are necessary to inform 

this court of the appropriate grounds for attorney fees. (Id at 884). In 

Richards, each requesting party provided far more than did Landco, citing 

the rule and statutory or code authority for an attorney fees award. 

However, since no argument for application of that authority was 

provided, attorneys' fees were not awarded. (Id at 883, 884). 

[Ill Compliance with RAP 18.1 (b) is mandatory. (citing Phillips Bldg. Co. v. An, 
81 Wash.App. 696, 705, 915 P.2d 1146 (1996). 
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In Pruitt, the party seeking fees employed a separate section in its 

brief to request fees but like Landco, that section omitted argument or 

underlying grounds justifying a grant of fees. Noting that the procedure 

outlined in RAP 18.1(b) was "mandatory", Division III held that "the 

showing was not enough" and fees were not awarded. (Id at 560). 

Lakes provides yet another example of a party seeking attorney 

fees through use of the required separate section in the brief with Division 

III holding that merely citing to RAP 18.1 without argument or citation to 

authority does not satisfy the requirement of the rule and fees were 

denied. (Id at 220). Landco even failed to mention RAP 18.1. 

The two most recent cases, one from Division I, Hurley v Port 

Blakely Tree Farms, 182 Wn.App. 753, 332 P.3d 469 (2014) and the other 

from Division II, Gunn v. Riely, 012115 WACA, 45177-8-II (January 21, 

20 15), both hold that RAP "requires more than a bald request for attorney 

fees on appeal". 

Landco's single sentence, "The prevailing party is entitled to 

attorney fees on this appeal" precludes an award to Landco of attorney 

fees on appeal. By finding that Landco was entitled to fees on appeal, the 

Decision is in direct conflict with prior rulings of this Court and the other 

Divisions. 

Ill 
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VI. CONCLUSION 

The Court should grant review to address the conflicts between the 

Decision and the prejudgment statute upon which the Decision was based. 

It should also grant review because of the conflict between the Decision 

and prior decisions of this Court and the Court of Appeals. 

In addition, review should be granted to address the violence done 

to the state constitution by the Decision in which the court, by adding 

language to the statute, has usurped legislative authority. Finally, this 

Court should grant review to provide clarity for the thousands of 

merchants obligated under arrangements of deferred payment. 

This Court is asked to decide whether RCW 19.52.010(1) requires 

one or two stated rates of interest. 

This Court is also asked to revtew that part of the Decision 

regarding attorney fees on appeal. If the ruling awarding fees on appeal is 

allowed to stand, it will conflict with earlier decisions of this Reviewing 

Court and all three Divisions of the C u