I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER & RESPONDENT 

The Petitioner is Harley C. Douglass, Inc., the Appellant and 

Defendant below (hereinafter "HCDI"). This Answer is filed by the 

Respondent TJ Landco, LLC, the Plaintiff and Respondent below 

(hereinafter "TJ Landco''). 

II. CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

HCDI sought review of the Published Opinion of the Comi of 

Appeals, Division III, filed on March 5, 2015 (hereinafter 

"Decision"). Both parties moved the court for reconsideration and 

both motions were addressed by an Order Denying Motion for 

Reconsideration, entered on March 31, 2015. A copy of the Decision 

is attached as Appendix A. A copy of the Order Denying Motion for

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

Petitioner HCDI presented two issues for review: 

Issue 1: Where contracting parties do not agree on an 
interest rate to be applied in the event of a default in 
payment, should the 12 percent rate be imposed under 
RCW 19.52.010(1)? 

Issue 2: Where both parties agree that the prevailing 
party is entitled to attorney fees and costs under the 
contract and both parties request attorneys' fees and 
costs on appeal, is an award of attorney fees and costs 
proper under RAP 18.1(b)? 
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IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

1. The Parties agreement and HCDI's breach. 

TJ Landco, LLC is a single member LLC, owned and operated by 

Tod Lasley. After obtaining his real estate license, Mr. Lasley worked 

selling property for several years. (RT 101; 20 to 107; 4). TJ Landco 

was formed in 1993. (RT 107; 5-11). 

In 2002/2003, TJ Landco acquired options to purchase various 

pieces of property across Highway 195 from Qualchan Golf Course that 

could be aggregated into a residential development. (RT 314; 3-22). 

However, late in the negotiation process, TJ Landco's primary financing 

source declined to pmiicipate any fmiher in this project. (RT 565: 21 to 

566: 1 0). At about the same time, HCDI's agent approached TJ Landco 

to inquire about buying the ground. (RT 131: 13-17). 

HCDI is a Washington Corporation owned by Harley C. 

Douglass, an experienced developer with more than 20 yem·s in the field 

and real property inventory valued in excess of $9,500,000. (RT 560: 

21-23; 599:2 to 600:2). After Harley C. Douglass reviewed the proposed 

project, the parties entered into a Real Estate Purchase and Sale 

Agreement whereby HCDI agreed to pay $3.6 million for 94 acres of 

undeveloped property. (CP 44). The deal was subject to TJ Landco 

obtaining preliminary plat approval from the City of Spokane that was 
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acceptable to HCDI. (CP 49). The Agreement also contained a clause 

providing that the prevailing patiy in any litigation related to 

enforcement of the contract shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' 

fees associated with the litigation. (CP 47). There was no provision for 

an interest rate in the event of default in HCDI's payment obligations. 

(CP 44-49). 

Obtaining Preliminary Plat approval took substantial time and 

effmi. During the course of obtaining Preliminary Plat approval, TJ 

Landco borrowed funds from HCDI. (CP 66). 

In October 2006 the City of Spokane gave final approval of the 

Preliminary Plat for the project known as Meadow Point Landing. After 

reviewing the Preliminary Plat and the City's decision following an 

appeal of the hearing officer's approval, HCDI determined that the 

Meadow Point Landing Project was viable. (RT 642: 24 to 643: 25). 

On December 22, 2006, HCDI prepared an Accounting which 

was signed by both parties and modified the financial terms of the 

agreement between them. In that document, the patties recognized that 

HCDI still owed $1,114,558.19 to TJ Landco. HCDI paid TJ Landco 

$114,558.19 on that day (CP 70) and the remaining amount of 

$1,000,000 was acknowledged as a valid debt to be paid in 5 equal, 

annual installments of $200,000 per year. (CP 68; RT 298: 4-24). There 
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was no discussion, negotiation or agreement related to an interest rate in 

the event of a default. (RT 578: 17-25; RT 574: 14-16). TJ Landco had 

fully performed its obligations by December 22, 2006. 

HCDI delayed the first payment until March 8, 2008, which TJ 

Landco accepted. (CP 73). On December 22, 2008, HCDI failed to 

make the second $200,000 installment payment as required (CP 588). 

HCDI did not provide any explanation for its refusal to pay the 

installment as it came due. (CP 589) 

On December 22, 2009 HCDI again failed to make the $200,000 

installment on the due date. (CP 588) Harley C. Douglass refused to 

speak with Tod Lasley or to provide any explanation as to why he had 

not paid the installments. (CP 524; 589) 

In Febtuary of 2010, TJ Landco filed an action against HCDI 

seeking to enforce the tetms of the agreement. (CP 3-13) HCDI also 

failed to make the $200,000 installment payments that came due on 

December 22, 2010 and December 22, 2011. To date, HCDI has not 

paid anything toward the outstanding principal debt of $800,000. Such 

money continues to be wrongfully withheld from TJ Landco. 

2. Conclusion of Trial Court Proceedings. 

The comi found that TJ Landco had fulfilled its obligations (CP 

590) and that HCDI was contractually obligated to make $200,000 
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payments on December 22 in 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011. (CP 588-589). 

It is undisputed that HCDI refused to make such payments and the court 

concluded that HCDI had breached the agreement. (CP 590, Conclusion 

2). 

The court further found that TJ Landco had been denied use of 

the $800,000 owed by HCDI from the date each installment became due 

and went unpaid. (CP 589; Finding of Fact 25). The court also found that 

Mr. Douglass's testimony at trial contradiCted previously provided 

declarations, that his trial testimony was evasive, and that his actions 

during the course of this dispute "affected his credibility with regard to 

po1iions of his testimony in this pmiicular case." (CP 589; Findings of 

Fact 27, 28, 29,30 & 31); 

Based on these Findings, the court awarded TJ Landco 

prejudgment interest, as follows: 

So the zero percent interest and the 6 percent interest are 
based upon a contract. And the contract called for certain 
payments to be made within a year's time. And the pa1iies 
agreed first that it would be 6 percent. Then they changed it 
up a bit in the accounting, and for whatever reason there 
was an agreement that there would be no interest paid. But 
basically, all bets are off: Ifyou're not going to abide by 
the contract and the Comi finds breach of contract and I 
order the prejudgment interest, the interest rate starts to 
accrue from the date the payment should have been 
made. I think it is appropriate to set it at 12 percent. 

(RT 891:1-11 Emphasis added). 
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3. Attorney Fee Award 

Based on the contractual provision related to attorneys' fees, the 

trial court awarded TJ Landco its reasonable attorneys' fees to be 

determined at a subsequent hearing. (CP 586; 591). 

On July 12, 2013 that comi held a hearing on the issue of 

attorney's fees based on the application ofTJ Landco which included the 

billing records for two firms involved in its representation at trial: 

Layman Law Firm, PLLP and the Law Offices of Wolff and Hislop. The 

attorney fee request included time for paralegals and legal interns. HCDI 

objected to TJ Landco's request for attorneys' fees on a variety of 

grounds. (CP 811-840). In opposing the calculation of the award, HCDI 

retained Mr. Steve Hassing (its current counsel on Appeal) to offer his